

Public Document Pack Uttlesford District Council

Chief Executive: Peter Holt

Museum Management Working Group

Date: Wednesday, 15th November, 2023

Time: 6.00 pm

Venue: Museum Great Hall

Chairman:Councillor M SuttonMembers:Councillors J Davey, J Moran, A Reeve (Vice-Chair) and G Sell
K Eden, D Kent, R Priestley, C Sharpe and T Watson (Museum
Society)

AGENDA

1 Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest

To receive any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

4 - 6

To consider the minutes of the previous meeting.

3 Museum Society Chair's report (verbal)

To consider the Museum Society Chairman's report.

4 Museum Curator's report (verbal)

To consider the Curator's quarterly report.

5 Museum Accreditation

7 - 14

To consider the Museum Accreditation Report.

6 Any other items which the Chair considers to be urgent

To receive any items that the Chair considers to be urgent.

7 Date and Time of Next Meeting

To consider the date and time of the next meeting.

For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services Telephone: 01799 510369 or 510548

Email: <u>Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk</u>

General Enquiries Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER Telephone: 01799 510510 Fax: 01799 510550 Email: <u>uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk</u> Website: <u>www.uttlesford.gov.uk</u>

Agenda Item 2

MUSEUM MANAGEMENT WORKING GROUP held at the Museum Great Hall on WEDNESDAY, 20 SEPTEMBER 2023 at 6.00 pm

Present: Councillor M Sutton (Chair) Councillors J Davey and A Reeve

Museum K Eden, D Kent, R Priestley and T Watson Society:

Officers in attendance: R Auty (Director of Corporate Services), C Edwards (Democratic Services Officer), J Oxley (Collections Officer), A Webb (Strategic Director of Finance, Commercialisation and Corporate Services) and C Wingfield (Curator - Saffron Walden Museum)

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Moran and Sell and from Christine Sharpe from the Museum Society.

2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 12th April 2023 were approved as an accurate record.

3 MUSEUM SOCIETY CHAIR'S REPORT

The Chair of the Museum Society said that there would be a pause on the decision to spend £37k on the metric survey for the Museum.

He said that they still awaited confirmation of the changes to the service following the imminent retirement of the Curator, Carolyn Wingfield.

The Strategic Director of Finance, Commercialisation and Corporate Services said that the financial forecast for the Council was challenging and the overall budget would need to be reduced by a third by the end of a five year period. He raised the following: -

- Blueprint Uttlesford was the name for the Council's change programme.
- The reduction in budget would have an impact on service delivery and ultimately on head count.
- Each service would be looked at over the five year period and the Museum would be in the first tranche this year.
- A temporary structure would be put in place and an interim Curator appointed internally until March 2025, the Museum would be reviewed and options for the service considered in this time.
- A number of options would be presented to Cabinet for consideration.
- A new tenant would be found as quickly as possible for the part of the Museum which had been rented by the Fry Art Gallery.

• The charging policy would be looked at as part of the review, entry fees were currently at a low basic level.

4 MUSEUM CURATOR'S REPORT

The Curator presented the quarterly report for April to June 2023 and she highlighted the following: -

- The user statistics included visitors and those who engaged via post, email and telephone, visitors to the website were not included.
- The Museum had a separate website to the Council, it was in the process of being updated and was due to go live shortly.
- Visitor numbers peaked around the school holidays.
- Visitor numbers had not yet returned to pre-Covid levels but were gradually improving.
- Volunteers had left during Covid and it was difficult to recruit, train and retain volunteers especially at weekends and Bank Holidays. There was one paid employee who worked on a Saturday.
- Loan boxes remained popular and Museum staff visited schools, school visits to the Museum were predominantly local schools now, although there was a recent visit from a school in Tower Hamlets.

5 MUSEUM ACCREDITATION

The Curator said that a number of the policy documents for the Museum Accreditation had been through the Cabinet process in 2019. As part of the process the Museum would need a new interim forward plan which would include budgets for the current year and an outline budget for 2024/25. This would need to go through Cabinet again and as the deadline date for completion was 18th January it would need to go to Cabinet in December.

The Director of Corporate Services said that the accreditation by the Arts Council allowed the Museum to bid for funds from a number of sources which included the National Lottery Heritage Fund.

6 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT

Feedback from schools was positive and was usually given in an informal way as it was difficult to get forms filled in. Schools that did engage with the Museum tended to come back again on a regular basis.

The Director of Corporate Services said that the Museum was second on a list of nineteen things to do in Saffron Walden on Trip Advisor.

Tony Watson said that 1st April 2025 was the 50 year anniversary of the agreement between the Museum Society and Uttlesford District Council and should be acknowledged in some way.

The meeting thanked Carolyn and wished her all the best in her retirement.

7 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING.

To be arranged in November and to be held in the Museum Great Hall after the new exhibition opens on 11th November.

The meeting ended at 6.37pm

Agenda Item 5





Saffron Walden Museum

Interim Forward Plan 2023 - 25

Content

Executive Summary	2
1 Museum's Statement of Purpose	2
2 A Brief History of the Museum	2
3 Review of the Previous Forward Plan	3
4 Analysis of the environment in which the museum exists	4
5 Action Plan – key aims; objectives, resource plan	5

Saffron Walden Museum:

Uttlesford District Council & Saffron Walden Museum Society Ltd MMWG Approval date: [Autumn 2023] UDC Cabinet Approval date: [December 2023] Due for Review: December 2024

Executive Summary

Against the backdrop of struggling council finances, our nearly 200 year old Museum, with its collections of local, regional, and national significance, popular displays, creative programming, and strong community support, deserves a plan which ensures it is sustainable and fit for the future. The museum has evolved for generations, as a vital research resource, with engaging collections for future generations to enjoy. In light of the council's financial difficulties the focus of the museum's development plan has switched quickly and dramatically from planning a major capital project, to streamlining the existing service to ensure its long term sustainability.

1 Museum's Statement of Purpose

The Museum Service's aim is to give people inspiration and a sense of place in Uttlesford district / north-west Essex, through exploration of our wide-ranging collections and the histories they represent.

The Museum's mission is to engage a larger and more diverse audience with Saffron Walden Museum's outstanding collections of local and worldwide significance, to benefit the local community, visitors, and global users, and to improve the Museum's sustainability.

Our aim is to make Saffron Walden Museum

- 1. A museum which everyone knows and where everyone is welcome.
- 2. A museum where people are excited and inspired by outstanding collections.
- 3. A museum which treasures learning and reaches beyond the building.
- 4. A museum which conserves its architectural heritage, as one of the oldest purposebuilt local museums, while meeting modern requirements in a manner compatible with its historic environment on the Walden Castle site.
- 5. A museum which is sustainable and with an enhanced diversity of income streams and community support

The Values which will inform our approach include:

Valuing Heritage and People - premises fit for purpose, excellence of care and presentation, visitors' and users' needs addressed, workforce (paid and voluntary) supported and able to develop skills and knowledge.

Sustainability – of the Museum, Environment, Financial, Community support, Wellbeing

Diversity and Connectivity – of Collections and their stories, Audience + Workforce; Access physical + intellectual; Biodiversity + use of site for many activities

2 A Brief History of the Museum

a) Origins

The Museum was founded by Saffron Walden Natural History Society and opened in 1835 in the Museum building, which is among the earliest purpose-built local museums and is a grade II listed building. The collections reflected the wide-ranging ambitions of its original trustees and benefactors to 'bring the world to Walden' and showcase the diversity of the natural and human world, as well as collections of local origin from north-west Essex and

the surrounding region. The collections were curated by Society members until the appointment of the first salaried curator in 1880.

b) Collections

Today, the Museum presents the human history and natural environment of north-west Essex (Uttlesford district), as well as significant non-local collections, a legacy of its founders' vision – principally world cultures, decorative arts, and Egyptology. The collections are estimated at around 175,000 objects and specimens. The archaeology collections are increasing extensively, due to planning and development in the district.

c) Site and Buildings

The site on which the Museum is located, is a scheduled ancient monument, being the former bailey area of Walden Castle, of which the ruined Norman keep survives nearby. The Museum stands on a strip of land along the north side of the site which is owned by Saffron Walden Museum Society Ltd but leased to Uttlesford District Council. The Castle and surrounding grass area are owned and managed separately by Uttlesford District Council. The tennis courts opposite the Museum are on land owned by Audley End Estates but leased to the Castle Hill Tennis Club. The Shire Hill offsite store was completed in 2015, it occupies land leased by Uttlesford District Council to Saffron Walden Museum Society Ltd for 999 years; the Museum Society owns the building, and it is leased to Uttlesford District Council to operate as part of the Museum service, thus putting all the museum buildings under the same lease agreement between the Museum Society and Council.

d) Governance and staffing

Saffron Walden Museum Society Ltd is the direct successor of Saffron Walden Natural History Society and is a registered charity. It owns the Museum buildings and the collections and ran the Museum Service with the aid of various grants until the 1970s when the newly formed Uttlesford District Council took over responsibility for running the Museum Service, with the buildings and collections on lease to the Council. Under the current management agreement for the Service, the Council is responsible for providing staff and revenue budgets, while the Society uses its charitable status to help raise funds for capital projects. The Museum Society applies interest from invested funds to purchases and other special projects for the collections.

The core staff team is approximately 6 full-time equivalents: Front-of-House & Admin Officer (16 hours per week), 4 full-time professional posts (Curator, Collections Officer (Human History); Natural Sciences Officer; Learning & Outreach Officer) and Security Officer (4 days per week). For Weekend and Bank Holiday staffing there are two permanent Visitor Services Assistant posts and a small team of casual-contract Museum Assistants, supplemented on Saturdays by a rota for curatorial staff and a Saturday Assistant to cover the Welcome Desk. There are 40 - 50 volunteers, operating the Welcome Desk (all days except Saturdays) and helping with collections and administrative tasks, and with learning activities and events. Museum Society directors and officers also give their time and expertise voluntarily.

3 Review of the Previous Forward Plan

The Resilient Heritage project funded by the National Lottery Heritage Fund (NLHF) in 2019 provided an Options Appraisal & Feasibility Study (Fourth Street, 2020) and an

Museum Service Forward Plan 2023-2025

Audience Development Plan (Julia Holberry Associates, 2020). A development plan was produced to improve public engagement, income, and sustainability.

In October 2021 the NLHF approved the Museum's Expression of Interest for funding for a development project called *Transforming Saffron Walden Museum for the 21st Century*. The scheme was costed at approximately £4.4m. The vision was for an extension which would include a learning suite, exhibitions gallery and refreshment offer. In the existing core building the reception area, galleries and office space would be redesigned in line with energy efficiency and climate change goals. The associated activity programme focused on attracting a greater diversity of visitors and reimagining the museum as a community hub.

In May 2022, just a few weeks before the planned submission date, the stage one application was suspended due to the sharp rise in inflation and an unexpected demand from Historic England, for heritage/historic impact assessments, design & access statement, and metric digital surveys. Quotations were obtained and briefs written but the Council and Museum Society both decided not to fund the surveys due to financial pressures. The key priorities had shifted.

Overall, significant progress was made on achieving the objectives set out in the previous Forward plans, despite continuing IT, heating, and maintenance difficulties. The documentation of the collections continued, improvements were made to the interpretation and visitor welcome. The museum responded well to the covid pandemic, with appropriate signage and procedures, switched focus to generating online content, introduced online event booking (Arts Tickets), click, and collect activity packs for families and an EPOS till, contactless payment system. The Castle was conserved with joint UDC and Historic England funding, although the mortar didn't hold due to extreme summer temperatures, and it is again closed to public access.

4 Analysis of the Current Environment

In May 2023 UDC produced a new Corporate Plan based on four strategic priorities:

- 1. Protecting and enhancing our environment
- 2. Building strong communities
- 3. Encouraging economic growth
- 4. Putting residents first

Although the Museum isn't specifically referenced in the Corporate Plan, the museum is clearly well-placed to support issues such as local biodiversity and climate-change awareness and has been doing so through its exhibitions and project work in recent years. The Museum works closely with and supports a range of community groups, recent examples including a home-educated group called The Cabin, Uttlesford Food Bank and the Community Shed.

The Museum's estimated economic contribution to Saffron Walden's economy was assessed by the National Annual Museum Survey in 2023, but there is scope to increase its economic impact and bring more visitors in to the area if the Museum's development aims can ultimately be pursued:

Museum Service Forward Plan 2023-2025

Saffron Walden Museum's Economic Impact of Visitors figures 2022/23: Local Visitors: £22,687 Day Visitors: £51,167

Due to a period of exceptional challenge for local government finances, all council services across UDC are to be reviewed over the next 4 years under a programme called Blueprint Uttlesford. The museum has been selected for the first phase meaning that development plans referenced above are now on hold pending the review.

The Curator (Museum Manager) retired in October 2023, after 23 years dedicated service. The existing Collections Officer (Human History) has been seconded to the role of Curator (Interim) for the period of the service review.

Saffron Walden and the Uttlesford District are affluent areas, but all local arts and cultural organisations are facing cuts and changes in their operating practices. In recent months, Saffron Screen (independent cinema) and Saffron Hall (independent concert hall) have both been under financial pressure.

Aim	Objectives	Resourcing
Aim To engage a larger and more diverse audience for the benefit of the local community and to improve the Museum's sustainability.	ObjectivesNetwork with key organisations in Saffron Walden and Uttlesford to ensure the museum is maximising it's potential: TIC, BID, Initiative, arts & cultural organisations.Plan exhibitions and events with audiences in mind to ensure they are visitor focussed and commercially appealing.Plan our marketing budget to ensure good coverage in the district. Exploit free editorial and online opportunities.Market the museum more actively as a community hub.Focus on attracting more low income families and visitors / users from parts of Uttlesford district more distant from Saffron Walden.Explore the viability of hiring in blockbuster commercial exhibitions 	Resourcing Time and staffing resource needed to be able to network effectively. Marketing strategy and allocated budget

5 Action Plan

	Liaise with UDC council	
	departments re. opportunities for	
	less siloed working n.b. community	
	development, sheltered housing,	
	etc. Social prescribing.	
A museum that everyone	Improve gate and entrance signage.	Budget for signage
knows and where everyone is		vinyls
welcome.	Improving visitor experience through	-
	cost efficient aesthetic	Take on maintenance
	improvements to welcome desk and	volunteers.
	shop area.	
	•	Take advantage of
	Offer basic refreshments in school	corporate social
	holidays around the activity	responsibility projects,
	programme, to increase dwell time.	to help repaint and
		improve areas of the
	Exploit free editorial to raise profile	museum and its
	of the museum.	grounds.
A museum where people are	Review what is available in storage	Staff levels permitting.
excited and inspired by	which could be leveraged to attract	
outstanding collections	a broader audience.	Need to maintain
		effective collections
	Add more interactive elements to	management – good
	the permanent displays.	movement and
		location control, quality
	Create new climate change hub	collections catalogue
	display (Discovery Centre area)	records, preventative
		conservation and
	Leverage the history of the	managing collections
		risks.
	collections and their regional and	IISKS.
	national significance.	
	Evaluit free aditorial to promote the	
	Exploit free editorial to promote the	
	collections.	
	Experiment with new events and	
	initiatives focussed on the	
	collections, but with more	
	mainstream commercial appeal –	
	sport, fashion, food, music, etc.	
	e.g., escape room activities, night at	
	the museum. Silent disco. Birthday	
	parties. Curator for a day	
	experience (red letter days style).	
A museum which treasures	Closer connection with schools and	Staffing permitted as
	_	Staffing permitted, as many external
learning and reaches beyond the building	learning organisations. Regular digital and paper-based mailouts to	community events are
	schools, to increase take up.	outside standard
	β solutions, to interease take up.	working hours.

	Outreach events, partner with other	
	organisations and attend town and	
	district community events.	
	Capitalise on the new website. Train	
	up staff and volunteers to be	
	involved with digital outreach (social	
	media, on-line publications).	
A museum which conserves	Sympathetic maintenance and	
its architectural heritage, as	development work	
one of the oldest purpose-		
built local museums, whilst	Reduce carbon footprint and energy	
providing modern facilities.	consumption.	
providing modern lacinties.		
	Improving physical sensory and	
	Improving physical, sensory, and intellectual access	
A museum which is		UDC and Finance
	Cost control, work closely with UDC	
sustainable, with an	accountant.	team advice.
enhanced diversity of income	Consider restructuring the museum	
streams and community	Consider restructuring the museum	SHARE & MDO
support	team to maximise efficiency and	advice. Collections
	promote a new culture which is	specialist networks
	flexible, adaptable and silo busting.	
		Fundraising Strategy
	Identify inefficiencies and streamline	and Consultant –
	all processes and procedures to	focussed this time on
	maximise efficiency.	core funding.
	Rationalise paper based files.	Museum Specialist
	Dispose of old AV equipment and	Consultant
	display materials no longer needed	knowledgeable about
	to maximise space.	alternative funding and
	Sell (non-collection) book	governance structures
	collections for fundraising – book	and the legal and
	sale model already tried and tested.	ethical implications
		involved.
	Consider alternative governance	
	structures and funding streams, to	Recruitment campaign
	ensure the long term sustainability	for the Museum
	of the museum service.	Society
	Move archaeological deposition	Longer term should the
	grants to Museum Society accounts	museum go
	for ease of administration (funds roll	independent this would
	over, not finite project terms)	require the
		appointment of
	Re-energise the Museum Society-	Trustees.
	promote joining as a member as	
	well as committee and board	Longer term should the
	opportunities.	museum go
		independent it would
	1	

	require a solid core amount of funding, on top of which fundraising would be done.
	Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 funds
	Trusts and Foundations for funding support
	UDC more actively market the schoolroom to prospective tenants, to reduce budget deficit